South Cambridgeshire Hall
Cambourne Business Park
Cambourne
Cambridge
CB23 6EA
t: 03450 450 500
f: 01954 713149
www.scambs.gov.uk

12 July 2021

To:

Quorum:

Chair – Councillor Grenville Chamberlain
Vice-Chair – Councillor Judith Rippeth
Members of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee – Councillors
Anna Bradnam, Dr. Martin Cahn, Nigel Cathcart, Sarah Cheung Johnson,
Graham Cone, Dr. Claire Daunton, Peter Fane, Sally Ann Hart,
Geoff Harvey, Steve Hunt, Dr. Aidan Van de Weyer and
Dr. Richard Williams
4

Substitutes: Councillors Heather Williams, Mark Howell, Sue Ellington, Bunty Waters,
Gavin Clayton, Henry Batchelor, Alex Malyon, Jose Hales, Dr. Ian Sollom
and Paul Bearpark

There is a pre-meeting session at 4pm the day before the meeting, for members
of the Committee only, to plan their lines of enquiry.

Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Scrutiny and Overview Committee,
which will be held in the Council Chamber - South Cambs Hall on Tuesday, 20 July
2021 at 5.20 p.m.
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees,
subcommittees, and outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of
the substitution in advance of the meeting. It is not possible to accept a substitute
once the meeting has started. Council Standing Order 4.3 refers.
Yours faithfully
Liz Watts
Chief Executive

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the
community, access to its agendas and minutes. If you have any
specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to
help you.
Agenda
Pages
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Ian Senior 03450 450 500 democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk

1.

Chair's announcements

2.

Apologies
To receive apologies for absence from committee members.

3.

Declarations of Interest

4.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-4

To authorise the Chair to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 June
2021 as a correct record.
5.

Public Questions
To answer any questions asked by the public. The Council’s scheme for
public speaking at remote meetings may be inspected here:
Public Questions at Remote Meetings guidance

6.

Draft Re-set and Recovery Plan (Key)

7.

Street Trading Controls - Adoption of Schedule 4 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 and
Designation of Consent Streets (Key)

5 - 26

27 - 32

Draft Cabinet report attached
8.

Work Programme

9.

To Note the Dates of Future Meetings
The next two scheduled Scrutiny & Overview Committee meetings
are at 5.20pm on
 Tuesday 14 September 2021
 Thursday 14 October 2021
There is an Extraordinary meeting of the Scrutiny & Overview
Committee on Tuesday 21 September 2021 to consider the next
stage in the preparation of the Greater Cambridge Joint Local Plan.

33 - 44

Notes to help those attending meetings in person at South Cambridgeshire Hall

While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall,
you also have a responsibility for your own safety, and that of others.
Security
When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued. Before leaving the
building, please sign out and return the Visitor badge to Reception.
Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic
Services on 03450 450 500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk
Emergency and Evacuation
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound. Leave the building using the
nearest escape route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this is
via the staircase just outside the door. Go to the assembly point at the far side of the
staff car park opposite the staff entrance
 Do not use the lifts to leave the building. If you are unable to use stairs by
yourself, the emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give
protection for a minimum of 1.5 hours. Press the alarm button and wait for help
from Council fire wardens or the Fire and Rescue Service.
 Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the Fire and Rescue
Service confirms that it is safe to do so.
First Aid
If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff.
Access for People with Disabilities
We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our
agendas and minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have
any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. The
Council Chamber is accessible to wheelchair users. Infra-red hearing assistance
systems are available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you
must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used
with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position. If your hearing aid does not have the ‘T’
position facility then earphones are also available and can be used independently. You
can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception.
Toilets
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. These include
facilities for disabled people.
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones
We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. Public meetings are
webcast and are also recorded, but we allow recording, filming and photography at
Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long
as proceedings at the meeting are not disrupted. We also allow the use of social
media during meetings to bring Council issues to the attention of a wider audience. To
minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, please switch your phone or
other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode.
Banners, Placards and similar items
You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner,
placard, poster or other similar item. If you do so, the Chair will suspend the meeting
until such items are removed.
Disturbance by Public
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chair will warn the
person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chair will order their removal from
the meeting room. If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room

Agenda Item 4
South Cambridgeshire District Council
Minutes of a meeting of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee held on
Tuesday, 22 June 2021 at 5.20 p.m.
Councillor Grenville Chamberlain – Chair
Councillor Judith Rippeth – Vice-Chair

PRESENT:

Councillors:

Anna Bradnam
Nigel Cathcart
Dr. Claire Daunton
Sally Ann Hart
Dr. Aidan Van de Weyer

Dr. Martin Cahn
Graham Cone
Peter Fane
Geoff Harvey
Dr. Richard Williams

Officers in attendance for all or part of the meeting:
Lesley Beevers (Service Manager (People Protection and Planning)), Peter
Campbell (Head of Housing), Jeff Membery (Head of Transformation), Ian
Senior (Scrutiny and Governance Adviser) and Liz Watts (Chief Executive)
Cllr Steve Hunt, Cllr John Batchelor, Cllr Neil Gough, Cllr Tumi Hawkins and Cllr Brian
Milnes were in attendance remotely, by invitation.
1.

Chair's Announcements
The Chair made a number of brief housekeeping announcements.

2.

Apologies
Councillor Sarah Cheung Johnson (a Scrutiny and Overview Committee member) and
Councillor Bridget Smith (Leader of the Council) sent apologies.

3.

Declarations of Interest
Councillors Dr. Martin Cahn, Nigel Cathcart, Peter Fane and Dr. Tumi Hawkins declared
non-pecuniary interests in Minute 6 (Private Sector Housing Policy), as owners of rented
properties or directors of small businesses involved in letting properties.

4.

Minutes of Previous Meeting
The Scrutiny and Overview Committee authorised the Chair to sign, as a correct record,
the minutes of the meeting held on 20 April 2021.

5.

Public Questions
There were no public questions.

6.

Private Sector Housing Policy
The Scrutiny and Overview Committee received drafts of the Private Sector Housing
Policy and Civil Penalties Procedure and Guidance, together with a draft Cabinet report
from the Head of Waste and Environment. Councillor Brian Milnes (Lead Cabinet Member

Page 1

Scrutiny and Overview Committee

Tuesday, 22 June 2021

for Environment and Licensing) was in attendance to give evidence to the Committee.
Councillor Dr. Claire Daunton asked why this matter was the responsibility of
Environmental Health rather than Housing. In reply, the Lead Cabinet Member explained
that the proposed Policy amounted to an enforcement and licensing function that fell within
his remit as Lead Cabinet Member.
Councillor Nigel Cathcart commented that properties were sometimes in poor repair
because tenants had failed in their responsibilities to look after them. He urged caution
and said that, while he welcomed a Policy that offered protection for tenants, reasonable
balance was needed to ensure appropriate support for landlords. Councillor Cathcart
emphasised the need to make sure that appropriate resources were committed to this
Policy, and the Service Manager (People, Protection and Planning) assured him that the
Environmental Health & Licencing team had been restructured recently and that staff
members were in place. The Scrutiny and Overview Committee noted that money
received as a result of fines levied under the Policy would remain with South
Cambridgeshire District Council.
Picking up on a comment from Councillor Cathcart, Councillor Anna Bradnam reiterated
the need for some degree of protection for landlords. The Lead Cabinet Member said that
the aim of the Policy was to protect tenants. Other measures, such as the Tenants’
Deposit Scheme, existed for the benefit of landlords. The Service Manager (People,
Protection and Planning) informed Members that the Policy would not apply in the case of
sub-letting.
Councillor Steve Hunt (a Scrutiny and Overview Committee member joining the meeting
by video conference) sought to compare and contrast the proposed Private Sector
Housing Policy and the Council’s Empty Homes Strategy in order to establish what
protection existed for neighbours. The Chair invited Councillor Hunt and the Service
Manager (People, Protection and Planning) to discuss this aspect outside the current
meeting.
Councillor Graham Cone agreed that the Policy must strike a balance between landlords
and tenants (notwithstanding the legal remedies available to landlords) and that the
availability of resources was of prime importance. Councillor Cone wondered what
potential there was for the Council to work more closely with bigger landlords to minimise
those instances where the Policy might otherwise be applied. The Lead Cabinet Member
said that the Policy would apply to all landlords, regardless of size. Dialogue was
important, but so was the scheme of escalation designed to deal with different landlords
and with persistent offenders.
Highlighting the need for the Policy to use consistent and precise language throughout,
Councillor Dr. Richard Williams said that the doctrine of reasonableness was a key issue.
South Cambridgeshire District Council must apply the Policy in connection with those
properties managed by its own arms-length company Ermine Street Housing. The Chair
invited Councillor Richard Williams, the Service Manager (People, Protection and
Planning) and the Lead Cabinet Member to discuss further details outside the current
meeting.
Noting that the problems sometimes caused by properties not being occupied was a
matter for the Council’s Housing Service, Councillor Dr. Martin Cahn suggested that there
might be scope for joint working across the Authority. And in an effort to encourage good
property management, Councillor Cahn suggested that consideration be given to a
‘Landlord Awards Scheme’.

Page 2

Scrutiny and Overview Committee

Tuesday, 22 June 2021

Councillor Peter Fane focussed on the benefits of having a meaningful dialogue with
landlords and, to this end, regretted any reference to ‘rogue landlords’. He also highlighted
Houses in Multiple Occupation where unruly tenants might cause more of a nuisance for
other tenants rather than anyone else. It was also important keep landlord contact
information up to date.
Councillor Geoff Harvey wondered how penalties were related to income. The Service
Manager (People, Protection and Planning) said she would clarify this in the final
document. Fairness was also an issue.
Councillor Dr. Tumi Hawkins gave evidence to the Committee in her capacity as a landlord
having dealings with five local authorities. She observed that it was unusual to see
housing matters dealt with by an Environmental Health Service. Councillor Hawkins
extolled the virtue of good communication as one way of forging a positive relationship
between landlords and their tenants. The Council needed to be conscious of the possibility
of tenants lodging malicious complaints. It also needed officers with the expertise to
conduct effective and fair assessments to prevent landlords being branded unfairly as bad
landlords.
By affirmation, the Scrutiny and Overview Committee commended the Private Sector
Housing Policy to Cabinet, subject to the comments referred to above and further work
being carried out as noted.
(Councillor Anna Bradnam missed the first part of this item, did not vote, and did not form
part of the affirmation.)
7.

Quarter 4 Performance Report
The Scrutiny and Overview Committee received the Key Performance Indicators and
Business Plan Update, together with a draft Cabinet report from the Head of
Transformation.
Councillor Neil Gough, Deputy Leader, made some introductory comments.
Councillor Aidan Van de Weyer expressed concern about the Contact Centre. In
response, the Deputy Leader acknowledged that the statistics were disappointing. He had
commissioned some work that plotted the number of calls per day against call waiting
times. This had revealed that the Contact Centre coped well if the number of calls
received was 600 or fewer, but that performance fell significantly if that number was 800 or
more. While it was important to resource the facility properly, staffing levels were not the
only answer. The Deputy Leader reminded Members that, unlike some other
organisations, South Cambridgeshire District Council could not simply close its Contact
Centre for the duration of the Covid-19 pandemic. Instead, the Council was taking a
holistic approach, encouraging those who could to use online alternatives while attempting
to reduce waiting time for those who had no choice but to phone.
The Head of Transformation highlighted the increased number and different nature of calls
received during the past 15 months when compared with previous years. He announced
that the Contact Centre was now fully staffed and that the project to modernise telephony
equipment was well-advanced. This equipment would enable the Council to offer residents
a call-back option and officers were actively identifying resources. Another option being
looked at was that of the webchat: it had been estimated that customer services staff
could deal with three webchats in the time it took to deal with one telephone call. The
Council was also exploring the deployment of Artificial Intelligence in order to allow

Page 3

Scrutiny and Overview Committee

Tuesday, 22 June 2021

residents to contact the Council when they wanted, including outside normal working
hours.
Councillor Judith Rippeth welcomed the concept of seeking tenants’ feedback about
response repairs by text message. The Lead Cabinet Member for Housing agreed with her
view that this was less intimidating than a face-to-face survey,
Councillor Graham Cone was concerned about complaints seemingly not being resolved
promptly. In reply, the Head of Transformation stated that good progress was being made
in tackling the backlog of complaints made against the Greater Cambridge Planning
Service.
The Deputy Leader undertook to investigate Councillor Dr; Richard Williams’ question
about how many planning applications apparently determined within the 8- week or 13week deadline had in fact been the subject of Extension of Time Agreements.
Councillor Dr. Martin Cahn was pleased to note that the Council was again offering a
pension verification service and that efforts were being made to reduce the backlog of
those with overseas pensions who had been on a waiting list as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic.
In response to Councillor Dr. Claire Daunton’s question about the cost to South
Cambridgeshire District Council of providing bed-and-breakfast accommodation during the
pandemic, the Lead Cabinet Member for Housing said that, after taking into account
grants received from Central Government, the net cost to the Council was £27,821 – a
figure well within budget.
8.

Work Programme
The Scrutiny and Overview Committee received and noted its updated work programme
for 2021-2022.

9.

To Note the Dates of Future Meetings
Members noted that the next two scheduled Scrutiny and Overview Committee meetings
would be at 5.20pm on



Tuesday 20 July 2021(not 27 July as published in the agenda)
Tuesday 14 September 2021

There would be an Extraordinary meeting of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee on
Tuesday 21 September 2021 to consider the next stage in the preparation of the Greater
Cambridge Joint Local Plan.

The Meeting ended at 7.05 p.m.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Scrutiny and Overview Committee

Lead Cabinet Member:

Cllr Bridget Smith (Leader)

Lead Officer:

Chief Operating Officer

20 July 2021

Draft Re-set and Recovery Plan

Executive Summary
1. The Re-set and Recovery Plan outlines the key areas the Council will prioritise in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic during 2021-23.
2. It is a Plan focused on practical recovery and seeks to identify a small number of critical
activities or changes to ways of working, that can help our communities and businesses
recover from the impact of the pandemic.
3. The document is intended to complement the activities and priorities within the Business
Plan (21/22) and the Medium-Term Financial Plan. It therefore does not focus on
activities already being undertaken within those documents or delivered as business as
usual. There are currently a few actions included that may extend or expand recently
introduced initiatives, such as an action to support those at risk of homelessness.
4. It is recognised that the plan is being written at a certain point in time, and that many of
the impacts of the pandemic will continue to be seen over future months. The Plan has
been drafted with the recognition that the implications from the virus, multiple national
lockdowns and changes to Government Policy, will continue to be far-reaching and will
require on-going dedicated resource from the Council throughout 2021.
5. The document submitted to Scrutiny is a developing draft. It is not the final version of the
Plan, and it is expected that this document will continue to be refined over the Summer.

Key Decision
6. No

Recommendations
7. Scrutiny and Overview Committee is invited to:
(a) Consider the draft Re-set and Recovery Plan and recommend to Cabinet any
additional issues, or changes, to ensure the document best responds to the

Page 5

challenges faced by South Cambridgeshire residents, communities and businesses
as a result of the pandemic.

Reasons for Recommendations
8. It is important that the Re-set and Recovery Plan for South Cambridgeshire reflects the
specific actions and partnership working that will make the most difference, in supporting
those acutely impacted by the pandemic and helping our communities and businesses to
recover.

Details
9. In drafting this Strategy, we have considered the impacts of the pandemic on South
Cambridge residents, communities and businesses. We want to focus on specific actions,
or changes to ways of working, that can best support them through the next two years
and through the immediate impacts of multiple lockdowns and the economic and societal
shocks the last 18 months has brought.
10. This is a plan focused on practical recovery and establishing new initiatives to take us
forward. It is intended to be read alongside the Council’s Business Plan and MediumTerm Financial Plan, and therefore does not duplicate actions already referenced in
these plans or any Business as Usual activities.
11. The plan challenges the Council to consider how we want to work with, and support
others, post-pandemic. Partnership working and helping our community groups to re-set
and rebuild, at a point where people feel very tired is incredibly important.
12. To deliver the actions within this plan, sometimes the Council will be a deliverer of
services; sometimes an enabler for other groups to deliver activities; and working in
partnership, an influencer. This will require us to think carefully about how we use our
resources and shape our engagement with others.

Implications
13. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk, equality and
diversity, climate change, and any other key issues, the following implications have been
considered:



Multiple lockdowns have had wide reaching impacts on our communities, businesses
and vulnerable individuals. Resource will be required throughout 2021 to ensure that
as the national vaccination programme is rolled out, support continues to be provided
to those who need it. This may have implications for some of the timescales within
the plan but it is not possible to say at this time what may be affected. The plan has
been written based on the information we have at this point in time.
The implications of multiple lockdowns and national restrictions have
disproportionately affected some people in our communities more than others. This
Plan seeks to support these individuals and groups in particular.

Page 6





Changing our ways of working may have implications for staff and our partnership
arrangements. Discussions are at the very early stages and this will be considered
as the Plan develops. Staff and partners have repeatedly said they do not want to
lose some of the ways of working we have introduced throughout the pandemic.
Many people are very tired, and recently volunteer numbers across the County have
been reducing. Through the Plan, we want to work closely with our communities to
support their recovery and ensure that they can continue to tell us where we should
focus our collective efforts.

Financial
14. The current actions within the plan can be funded from money available for the Council’s
COVID-19 response and recovery activities. Any changes or additions to the action plan
will need to be considered from a financial and resourcing perspective.

Legal
15. None.

Staffing
16. As part of the draft action plan development process, resourcing has been considered to
ensure deliverability of the priorities.
17. There will continue to be demands upon our staffing resources from COVID-19 related
activities throughout 2021.

Risks/Opportunities
18. In developing the Re-set and Recovery Plan, the Council has the opportunity to reflect on
lessons learned with our partners, throughout the pandemic. There is still much that is
uncertain with regards to the coming months, but the Plan highlights those areas where
the Council has an opportunity to support those who have been, and likely will continue to
be, acutely impacted by the effects of the virus and multiple lockdowns.

Equality and Diversity
19. The action plan reaffirms the Council’s commitment to be a responsible employee of
choice, leading by example through recruitment and education and training programmes.
The Plan also seeks to identify those most impacted by the pandemic, who are often
those most vulnerable to economic or societal shocks more generally and continue to
target support to them in the most effective way.

Climate Change
20. The pandemic has highlighted one of the four key priority areas within the Business Plan,
‘Green to Our Core’. We have been reminded of the need to underpin resilient
sustainable communities and economic interventions with a Green recovery. The priority

Page 7

within the Business Plan 2021-22 makes sure that the environment and environmental
impacts remain at the centre of all the work we do on recovery.

Health and Wellbeing
21. The pandemic has reminded us all of the importance of health, and healthy lifestyles.
The Action Plan includes a range of actions aimed at improving the health and wellbeing
of the residents and businesses in the district.

Alignment with Council Priority Areas
18. This draft Plan is in line with the overarching themes and clear priorities within the
Council Business Plan 2021-22.

Background Papers
None.

Appendices
Appendix A: Draft Re-set and Recovery Plan

Report Author:
Anne Ainsworth – Chief Operating Officer
Telephone: 01954 712920

Page 8

Appendix A

South Cambridgeshire District Council

Re-set and Recovery

Our Post-Pandemic Commitments
2021-23

Page 9

1

Summary from XXXX

Contents Page
XXXXXXXXX

Page 10

2

Executive Summary
As the national vaccination programme continues to be rolled out during 2021,
restrictions to prevent the spread of COVID-19 are gradually being released and we
are beginning to emerge from the immediate impact of the pandemic into an
endemic and recovery phase.

There is much to reflect on and learn from recent events. It is with caution that we
move into recovery. We know that the impact of multiple national lockdowns will
continue to be far-reaching and as the virus is still mutating and moving through
parts of the country, we must continue to monitor cases, outbreaks and support the
most vulnerable in our society. This activity will continue throughout 2021, so we
have to balance a desire to help our businesses and residents re-establish aspects
of their lives and livelihoods restricted by national directives, with the continued
vigilance required from a national pandemic.

We have all had different experiences of lockdown. What we do know is that for
some communities, families and businesses the implications have been devastating,
and a predicted economic recession will only add to these challenges. Conversely,
COVID-19 has presented opportunities. Not least when it comes to the
environmental impact from the way our economy was structured and the increase in
the use of ICT solutions for many businesses.

The pandemic has reminded us all of the importance of individual-focused support
and has highlighted the need to underpin resilient sustainable communities and
economic interventions with a Green recovery.

As a Council we responded quickly and effectively to the challenges COVID-19
presented but the response across the District was so much more. Businesses,
residents, our communities, our Parishes, and our partners all stepped up and did a
brilliant job of caring for the most vulnerable in our society. It was humbling to see

Page 11

3

and one of the greatest team efforts we collectively could ever have hoped for. It only
serves to emphasise the difference we can make and the influence we have, when
we work together. The role that volunteers in particular played throughout the
pandemic should never be forgotten.

As partners such as the Cambridge and Peterborough Combined Authority begin to
introduce initiatives designed to support an economic recovery, South
Cambridgeshire District Council (SCDC), will aid recovery and innovation in ways
specifically designed to support our district, reflecting what we have learned and
what we could do differently in the future.

This document is focused on activity that takes a holistic, whole society, approach to
the current pandemic. This Strategy should be read in conjunction with the Council’s
Business Plan (2021-22) and Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP). We still intend
to deliver the priorities we have set out in these plans. The actions in this document
though focus on how we can go further, and respond specifically to the challenges
and opportunities presented by the pandemic. We have been listening to the voices
of our communities and local businesses and want to tailor our response in ways that
will best support South Cambridgeshire through the recovery phase and after.

We know things are still very difficult, and uncertain, but we are committed to doing
all we can to ensure that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a place that offers
an excellent quality of life, in every way, for our residents and those who work or visit
us here.

Page 12

4

Where are we now?
The pandemic has highlighted some of the most important challenges our society
faces, including:

1. Communities in our Districts have come together to offer vital support to
vulnerable individuals, reducing loneliness and isolation. These groups have
provided an extension to Council services in many cases, providing crucial ‘on the
ground’ information about how services should be delivered and ensuring quick
responses to requests for help. In 2020 South Cambridgeshire had around 5,000
volunteers helping with the response to the pandemic. It was a quite wonderful,
heartfelt and vital part of ensuring residents of the District were supported.
2. Our Businesses have been severely impacted. The Council’s Business Support
Team have been inundated with requests for help and for Government Grant
funding. It is clear that some businesses will not re-open post lockdown, and
many will need continued support to re-establish their income streams, stabilise
their businesses and then begin to grow again. Throughout the pandemic many
businesses have shown incredible ingenuity, placing more of their services on-line
and offering goods and services in ways previously unimaginable. The learning
from this agility and potential new markets must not be lost.

3. The pandemic has hit those most vulnerable in our society the hardest,
widening gaps and acutely highlighting issues of inclusion, equity and opportunity.
We know that there has been a disproportionate impact on young people, women,
minority groups and those living in areas of deprivation. Domestic Violence, risk
of homelessness, mental health issues and health issues more generally, and
debt have all increased. People who were experiencing poverty will continue to
be at risk of further economic hardship throughout 2021, as Government grant
schemes, such as furlough and changes to tenancy agreements, come to an end.
There is great uncertainty about a consumer-led economic recovery, given that

Page 13

5

some people have seen massive decreases in their income and continue to be
concerned about job security. We are facing a ‘forced’ recession, as the result of
a societal ‘shock’, and as such we cannot be sure how deep it will go and how
long it will last.

4. The pandemic has also shone a light on the public sector and our traditional ways
of working. The pandemic has reinforced the need for, and the benefits of,
partnership working. Throughout 2020, regionally and locally, our public sector
services have responded quickly, working with our local communities, designing
new services and support schemes, with a shared sense of purpose. It showed
how, with a joint focus and clear outcomes, the public sector can work in an agile
and successful way. Many public sector organisations have also modernised
their relationship with customers and service users, through better use of
technology. We have an important responsibility not to lose all these ways of
working, particularly with key partners including our neighbouring Local
Authorities, the County Council, Health and the Combined Authority.

There are signs of hope emerging which relate to the roll-out of the national
vaccination programme. However, we also know that variants of concern continue to
be a factor in our attempts to limit infections and hospital admissions. It is expected
that booster vaccines will be required for many in the winter and we may face further
lockdowns or restrictions if infections and hospitalisations grow. In short, the virus is
not going away, we must learn to live with it, and we will support our communities
and businesses to do so.

Page 14

6

Our Post Pandemic Commitments
We will:
1.

Place our Communities at the heart of our recovery

2.

Work with our businesses to help them stabilise and rebuild during
economic uncertainty

3.

Ensure those most impacted by the pandemic are supported

4.

Continue to strengthen our relationships with key partners, to deliver
joint, practical solutions to local challenges

Principles for Delivery
 Co-design – listen for the quiet voice
 Committed Collaboration with Partners
 Consistent and genuine Communication
 Customer and Quality of life focused services
 Continuous Improvement and learning
 Inclusivity

Page 15

7

Our Focus
1.

Inclusive, Healthy and Connected Communities

The role of strong, inclusive, caring and resilient communities has been an enormous
factor in helping many people through the pandemic. We have all been reminded
that ‘bottom up’, locally driven approaches usually work best.

We want to engage and build meaningful relationships with our communities. We
want to hear all voices and we want to involve local people in decision-making
processes – whether that be hearing views on areas of growth; or understanding
what local parishes and groups feel their communities need.

The roll of volunteering and locally based groups cannot be underestimated
throughout the pandemic. It has been inspiring. We want to continue to work with
local groups and create more opportunities for volunteering (recognising that current
people are very tired) and more focus on projects that residents feel will benefit their
communities.

We will place Community-led and locally developed plans at the heart of our
approach to recovery. We are working with our parishes to identify, and find
solutions for, local challenges. We also want to work closely with the County Council
as a strategic partner to better plan, influence and work alongside those services that
directly impact upon our residents.

Page 16

8

2.

Rebuild a thriving economy

Whilst we are fortunate to benefit from a city of international acclaim such as
Cambridge and the reputation and economic standing it brings, we cannot take this
for granted. The United Kingdom has also recently left the European Union and the
implications of this from an economic and societal perspective have still to be fully
realised. It is likely that the city and surrounding areas will recover more quickly
economically than other parts of the country but the current economic instability is
considerable.

We want South Cambridgeshire to have a thriving economy, linked to the success of
the City of Cambridge, but as a destination of choice for businesses and visitors in
our own right.

Over the past 12 months, the financial resilience of many businesses has been
eroded. Employers including micro, small and medium sized companies will need
support to re-build their business base. We want to stop businesses that were
thriving pre-COVID, from now failing. We will need to be quick and agile in our
response, tailoring our support to local demands – so business and employment
intelligence will be vital. We must ensure that our partnerships with related
organisations are strong and we agree priorities quickly. We need to plan for a short
and long term recovery with these partners, utilising national schemes and resources
as they exist and building confidence in private sector investment.

Many people have lost their jobs or are at risk of unemployment when furlough ends.
Helping people find new jobs, re-train and further develop their skills or qualifications
will be key. Many individuals will not have been unemployed in their adult lives or
sought further education opportunities. We will need to help people navigate through
what will be a very uncertain time, and support education providers to provide
courses that enable people to re-enter the job market as soon as possible.

Page 17

9

We will work with our partners to provide employment opportunities, including
apprenticeships, internships and utilising the Kickstart programme to support young
people. We will ensure that as an employer ourselves, we do all we can to ensure
our recruitment processes are accessible and inclusive. We will expect our
development partners to create employment for local people, both directly and
through their supply chains. Our areas of growth should benefit local people.

South Cambridgeshire is committed to a Green Recovery. Balancing our
commitment to our environment and climate change, with the demands for growth,
housing and transport is one of our greatest challenges. We will focus our efforts on
key growth sectors, vital to our local economy, utilising local intellectual property to
encourage businesses focused on climate change to grow within South
Cambridgeshire. We will explore options of creating more ‘touch-down’ and incubator
space for those who may be predominantly working from home.

3.

Support those most impacted by the pandemic

Throughout the pandemic, working with local communities, parishes and partners,
we have seen the challenges many households face with regards to basic
requirements that are often the cause of health inequalities – good food, a warm
home and stable employment.

Housing supply and accessibility will remain a key issue for the District, exacerbating
a challenge that South Cambridgeshire was dealing with pre-pandemic. Ensuring
that housing of different tenures and affordability are brought forward for
development will play a key role in supporting our communities and the local
economy. We will continue to push for affordable housing on development sites, and
to expect high quality energy efficiency in our homes.

We will work with the City Council to tackle food poverty and will continue to work
with our communities to prioritise those at risk of food insecurity.

Page 18

10

We want people to feel safe in our communities. Domestic Abuse has sadly been the
experience of many people nationally during the pandemic and we want to ensure
that the Council is well equipped to identify and support individuals at risk of, or
experiencing abuse in their homes.

Young people have been particularly affected by the impacts of multiple lockdowns,
missed hours of learning and schooling from home. We will work with education
colleagues at the County Council to support children and young people whose
education has been disrupted. We will particularly focus on those in receipt of Free
School Meals, those who are Not in Employment, Education and Training, Children
who are Looked after and Children Leaving Care. Ensuring we are helping with any
identified needs, such as mental health, Careers Advice & Education, and pathways
into employment, education and training.

We will support mental health initiatives and work closely with mental health
services, to assist those suffering from anxiety and low-level depression. We have
seen throughout the pandemic what happens when acute needs are not addressed
immediately.

4.

Strengthen our relationships and new ways of working

Further work is needed to assess the inequalities that have been exposed more
acutely in our society through the pandemic. We need to approach the planning,
delivery and evaluation of our work on recovery differently.

Previously the challenge for SCDC has been balancing the demands for growth,
particularly in housing and transport (connectivity) alongside a focus on
sustainability. As we face a pandemic-related recession, the Council will need to
consider the local impact on business, employment and skills/education in order to
help the local economy recover, and once again grow.

Page 19

11

Partnership working will continue to be key across a board range of issues. It will be
important to work with the County Council on any changes/pressures on their
services and with our health colleagues. Working with other Councils in
Cambridgeshire, particularly the City of Cambridge, to understand how we can
support our collective recovery ambitions and interdependent economic challenges
and avoid duplicating efforts; and working on key programmes such as the Ox-Cam
Arc which offers considerable opportunities for sustainable growth.

We will work closely with our health partners (including the new Integrated Care
System), community groups and parishes and other local authorities, to ensure our
communities enjoy good access to healthcare and social care and have support to
take positive actions to stay healthy.

We will work very closely with our neighbouring Local Authorities and the County
Council, building on the relationships we have established during the pandemic. We
will work jointly on key local issues and shared priorities; identifying who is best
placed to deliver services and support. We will share resources, skill sets and
agreed outcomes, working together as strategic partners.

Page 20

12

Action Plan
*SCDC is not directly responsible for all of these actions. In line with our intended approach to partnerships and service delivery, some will be done in
collaboration with others. Quite a lot of this is about how we work; our relationships; and re-building the fabric of society and our collective resilience.

Inclusive, Healthy and Connected Communities
The focus is on: Community-led planning. We will take a community asset and strength-based approach. We will be an ‘enabler’, not a ‘doing
to’ organisation.

Page 21

What we will do

The

Who is

How will we know

timeline responsible when this has
been achieved?

1. Create a clear policy for how we will work and engage with communities (Community/Localism Policy)
2. We will strengthen the focus on outcomes which improve social capital across our Corporate Policies –
ensuring that community benefits are considered and removing any barriers to local socially-driven firms,
including social enterprises.
3. Create a new grant scheme until Jan 2022 which focuses on groups who improve health outcomes (including
for Long Covid-19); reduce social isolation for older people; increase volunteering; support young people’s
mental health

13

4. Work with local community-based groups to help them stabilise and recover, rebuild their volunteering base
and build their future resilience
5. We will investigate how to provide short-term support to day centres and activities for older people while they
recover their client base post pandemic. We will work with the County to establish whether services through
adult social care for individuals and their carers, are providing the right level of support across South
Cambridgeshire
6. We will offer a XXX free trial of the Mobile Warden Scheme for those who would benefit from it.
7. We will partner with relevant organisations to create district-wide events that support our local Pubs and help

Page 22

them recover their client base

Rebuild a Thriving Economy
Our focus is on: Supporting small and medium sized local businesses to stabilise their business base and begin to rebuild and re-grow;
ensuring those particularly impacted by the pandemic can access employment and training pathways.

What we will do

The timeline

Who is

How will we know

responsible when this has
been achieved?
1. Identify those businesses who would benefit from significant start-up/scale up financial backing and
advice.
2. Develop a Cultural Strategy for the District

14

3. Review future options for empty retail premises-including community and business hubs and popups
4. Support businesses to become more environmentally friendly and thereby cut costs; to encourage
the creation of new business in the green economy; to focus on ways of working and investments
that actively support Green businesses in our areas; and promote spaces and support for
collaboration and innovation
5. Expand our recruitment offer to target hard to fill vacancies and Grow Your Own schemes by
increasing our apprenticeships, internships and use of government schemes, particularly for young
people.

Page 23

6. Introduce a digital inclusion skills programme –– to ensure that people can access services on line
and have greater choice over how they interact with public service providers.

7. Ensuring our new Enterprise Zones attract and retain top companies, top talent, and create GVA
opportunities that support our Green priorities

15

Support those most impacted by the pandemic
Our focus is on: Ensuring people have access to basic provisions; Supporting young people; expanding support for those at risk of homeless

What we will do

The timeline

Who is

How will we know when

responsible this has been achieved?
1. Work with Cambridge City to address Food Poverty

Page 24

2. Continue to support food banks – do not withdraw support too soon.
3. Link our services together, and improve data sharing, to identify and introduce early support if
we think people may be struggling to pay their bills (with our partners including the County
Council)

4. Support an initial investment in whole council domestic abuse training and awareness raising
and the improvements identified as part of the Domestic Abuse Housing Accreditation.
5. Look at opportunities to expand the Wild Minds project (support good mental health for 14-17
year olds) into other locations in South Cambridgeshire
6. Work with the County Council to create a locally-tailored package of support for young
people, particularly those who were already most vulnerable before the pandemic and at risk
of becoming NEET (with clear pathways into further education or employment)

7. Continue to deliver a money management and energy efficiency advice service to those at
risk of losing their homes

16

Strengthen our relationships and new ways of working
Focus is on: Working with the City, County and Health partners in a new way, reflecting the lessons we have learned during the pandemic

What we will do

The timeline

Who is

How will we know when this has been

responsible achieved?
1 Work with the new Integrated Care System and partners, to ensure that
residents have access to good, local healthcare
2 Ensure that S106s and healthcare planning reflect the health and community

Page 25

needs of new and expanding communities

3 Help our communities plan for further pandemics or further lockdowns and
restrictions

4 Change our ways of working post pandemic to reduce our environmental
footprint and help us become a Carbon-neutral organisation

5 Work with the County Council, other districts, health, and police partners to
agree and deliver joint priorities; and establish new ways of working for targeted
services

17

Appendix B:
Relevant Documents:


CPCA Business Board Annual Delivery Statement



Prime Ministers 10 point plan for green industrial revolution



Health and wellbeing strategy



Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Independent Economic Review (2018)



Local Industrial Strategy



Zero Carbon Strategy



Doubling Nature Strategy



SCDC Investment Strategy



Business plan



MTFP



Local Covid-19 action plan



Staff survey



LERS



Greater Cambridge Economic Plan refresh

Page 26

18

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Cabinet

Lead Cabinet Member:

Councillor Brian Milnes

Lead Officer:

Head of Climate, Environment and Waste (Acting)

1 September 2021

Street Trading Controls – Adoption of Schedule 4 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
and Designation of Consent Streets
Executive Summary
1. That the Cabinet agree to adopt Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982 for the whole of the District, and to agree to advertise an intention
that all streets in the District should be designated consent streets (with the exception of
A11 and A14).

Key Decision
2. Yes, it is a significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area
comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the relevant local
authority.

The key decision was first published in the July 2021 Forward Plan.

Recommendations
3. It is recommended that Cabinet approve the adoption of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“The Act”) for the whole of the South

Page 27

Cambridgeshire District, and designate all roads and streets within the District as
Consent Streets (with the exception of the A11 and A14).

Reasons for Recommendations
4. Adoption of the Act District-wide, together with designating the whole of the District
(with the exception of the A11 and A14), would enable a new Street Trading Policy to be
implemented which would be fair, consistent and equitable across the District. This
would give the Licensing Authority greater control over street trading and would ensure
that all traders are subject to the same application, enforcement and conditions
regardless of where they trade in the District.

Details
5. Street trading legislation is covered under the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982. This Act was never adopted District-wide by South Cambridgeshire
District Council (SCDC) as historically it was left to Parish Councils to individually
determine whether they request that SCDC adopt the legislation within their villages.

6. Whilst there was merit in allowing Parish Councils to determine what controls exist
within their area, this restriction has proven to be a challenge for the Licensing Authority,
as it has not been able to exercise street trading functions in a fair, safe, well-regulated
equitable manner. For example, one trader had had to pay thousands of pounds for a
licence to trade in one part of the District, whilst other traders have been able to
continue trading without a licence being required whatsoever in another part of the
District.

7. The result of this inequality sees well-regulated traders in some areas of the District,
whilst in other areas, unlicensed traders who have not undergone any form of
background or insurance checks legally operating in the District, without being subject to
operating conditions or restrictions on times of trading or location.

8. A blanket street trading control would enable a Policy to be implemented which still
seeks the views of the Parish Council on application and would adhere to any existing
bylaws or other restrictions.

Page 28

9. Should Cabinet agree to adopt the Act and designate all areas as Consent Streets, then
the intention would be advertised by way of public notice, and consultation with the
Police, Cambridgeshire County Council Highways and Parish Councils. The Cabinet would
then meet to consider such representations and may resolve or refuse the full adoption.
Further advertisement would then be necessary.

10. From this point, Officers would then be able to work on revising the current Street
Trading Policy to implement a fair, robust, clear and well-regulated approach to licensing
of street traders across the District.

Options
11. The Cabinet may agree to:
a) Adopt the legislation District-wide to enable a blanket licensing policy and regime to
be formulated.
b) Refuse to adopt the legislation and retain the current licensing regime.

Implications
12. The introduction of the District-wide adoption of the Act, Consent streets, policy and
associated administration and enforcement will utilise existing resources. There will be
cost implications for adopting the Act advertising the intention to designate streets.
However, additional licensing income may be generated as a result of the blanket Policy.
Financial
13. Finance have been consulted in the production of this report but at this stage no
financial implications can be foreseen.
Legal
14. None for the purposes of this report.

Page 29

Risks/Opportunities
15. There is a risk that existing traders in uncontrolled areas may not wish to apply for a
licence and those areas would lose that facility. In addition, it may mean that as a result
of street traders being better regulated and more effectively controlled, we may see an
increase in licence fee income and costs could be recovered in a clearer more defined
way. However, the risks are not currently considered significant enough in terms of
impact of probability to warrant inclusion on the risk register.

Alignment with Council Priority Areas
Growing local businesses and economies
16. The introduction of a District-wide street trading regime would seek to enable business
to be supported by way of introduction of a flexible street trading policy.

Background Papers

17. Current Street Trading Policy (March 2010)

Appendices
Appendix A: Current Street Trading Control areas in South Cambridgeshire

Report Author:
Rachel Jackson – Principal Licensing Officer
Telephone: (01954) 713397

Page 30

Appendix A
Current Street Trading Control areas in South Cambridgeshire
All County 'A' roads in South Cambridgeshire District Council (except A11 and A14)


























All roads in Bar Hill
All roads in Barrington
All roads in Balsham
All roads in Caldecote
All roads in Comberton
All roads in Cottenham
All roads in Duxford
All roads in Fulbourn
All roads in Gamlingay
All roads in Girton
All roads in Graveley
All roads in Great Shelford
All roads in Hardwick
All roads in Harston
All roads in Histon and Impington
All roads in Linton
All roads in Longstanton
All roads in Melbourn
All roads in Oakington
All roads in Pampisford
All roads in Papworth Everard
All roads in Sawston
All roads in Waterbeach
All roads in Willingham
C282 (Cambridge road, Ely road and High Street) Milton

Page 31

This page is left blank intentionally.

NOTICE OF KEY AND NON KEY DECISIONS
To be taken under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 from Start/Valid/Date

Notice is hereby given of:



Key and Non Key decisions that will be taken by Cabinet, individual Lead Cabinet Members or Officers
Confidential or exempt executive decisions that will be taken in a meeting from which the public will be excluded (for whole or part)

Page 33

*A decision to:
1. Incur expenditure or savings in excess of £200,000; or
2. Acquire or dispose of land or property with a value in excess of £1,000,000 shall be treated as significant for these purposes. However, a decision
to invite a tender or award a contract shall not be treated as a key decision where the purpose of the contract is to fulfil the intention of any policy
or scheme included in the policy framework or budget or involves a continuation of an existing policy or service standard.
A notice / agenda, together with reports and supporting documents for each meeting will be published at least five working days before the date of the
meeting. In order to enquire about the availability of documents and subject to any restriction on their disclosure, copies may be requested from
Democratic Services, South Cambridgeshire District Council, South Cambridgeshire Hall, Cambourne Business Park, Cambourne, Cambridge, CB23
6EA. Agenda and documents may be accessed electronically at www.scambs.gov.uk
Formal notice is hereby given under the above Regulations that, where indicated (in column 4), part of the meetings listed in this notice may be held in
private because the agenda and reports for the meeting will contain confidential or exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) and that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in
disclosing it. See overleaf for the relevant paragraphs.

If you have any queries relating to this Notice, please contact
Patrick Adams on 01954 713408 or by e-mailing Patrick.Adams@scambs.gov.uk

Agenda Item 8

A Key Decision is a decision by the Cabinet, or an individual Cabinet Member or officer, which is likely to either incur significant* expenditure or make
significant savings, or to have a significant impact on those living or working in 2 or more wards.

Paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
(Reason for a report to be considered in private)
1.
2.
3.
4.

Information relating to any individual
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes:
(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or
(b) to make an Order or Direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime

Page 34

The Decision Makers referred to in this document are as follows:
Cabinet
Councillor Bridget Smith
Councillor Neil Gough
Councillor John Batchelor
Councillor Bill Handley
Councillor Tumi Hawkins
Councillor Peter McDonald
Councillor Brian Milnes
Councillor John Williams

Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader, Strategic Planning & Transport and Transformation & Projects
Housing
Community Resilience and Health & Wellbeing
Planning Policy and Delivery
Business Recovery
Environmental Services and Licensing
Finance

Key and non-key decisions expected to be made from 1 July 2021
Decision to be
made

Description of
Decision

Decision Maker

Biodiversity
Supplementary
Planning
Document

We require Cabinet
to approve this
document so that it
can be taken
through the
consultation
process, improved
through that effort,
and bought back to
Cabinet later in the
year for adoption.

Cabinet

Key

Page 35

Private Sector
Housing Policy
(Environmental
Health:Enforcement
and Licensing)
Key

Review of the

05 July 2021

Reason for
Report to be
considered in
Private

Portfolio Holder
and Contact
Officer

Lead Cabinet
member for
Planning

Documents
submitted to the
decision maker

Report
(publication
expected 18 June
2021)

John Cornell,
Natural
Environment
Team Leader

To approve the
Cabinet
Private Sector
Housing Policy to
ensure the council
deals with private
sector housing
issues in a fair
and consistent
manner and
incorporate
guidance from
Government
departments.
To implement

Date of Meeting

Cabinet

05 July 2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Environmental
Services and
Licensing

Report
(publication
expected 18 June
2021)

Lesley Beevers,
Environmental
Health Officer

05 July 2021

Lead Cabinet

Report

Design Review
Service
Non-Key

Page 36
Conservation Area
Work Programme,
including
approach to
Longstanton
Conservation Area
Key

changes to the
Design Review
Service (Design
Enabling Panel at
South
Cambridgeshire
District Council
and the
Conservation
Panel at
Cambridge City
Council), taking
account of the
findings and
recommendations
of the
independent
expert
commissioned to
review the panels.
To consider the
criteria and
approach for a
rolling programme
of Conservation
Area appraisals
and management
plans and based
on this, to
consider whether
the Longstanton
Conservation
Area should be
reviewed at this

member for
Planning

(publication
expected 18 June
2021)

Joanne Preston,
Principal Urban
Designer

Cabinet

05 July 2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Planning
Jane Green, Built
and Natural
Environment
Manager

Report
(publication
expected 18 June
2021)

time.
Officer
Delegations for
Infrastructure
Projects - Urgent
Item
Key

Page 37
Making of Foxton
Neighbourhood
Plan
Non-Key

Confirm delegated
functions of the
Joint Director of
Planning and
Economic
Development for
providing
responses on
behalf of South
Cambridgeshire
District Council to
specific stages of
the statutory
process for
infrastructure
proposals being
promoted through
the Nationally
Significant
Infrastructure
Projects and
Transport and
Works Act.

Cabinet

05 July 2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Planning

Report
(publication
expected 18 June
2021)

Adoption of
neighbourhood
plan after
successful
referendum.

Council

22 July 2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Planning

Report
(publication
expected 14 July
2021)

Alison Talkington,
Senior Planning
Policy Officer

Waterbeach
Neighbourhood
Plan
Non-Key

Ermine Street
Housing Business
Plan

Adoption of
neighbourhood
plan after
successful
referendum.

Council

22 July 2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Planning

Report
(publication
expected 14 July
2021)

To approve the
Ermine Street
Housing Business
Plan.

Council

22 July 2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Housing

Report
(publication
expected 14 July
2021)

A draft little
Shelford Village
Design Guide
SPD has been
prepared by the
local community.
The Council has
been asked to
take it through the
relevant
processes to
enable it to
become an SPD.

Cabinet

01 September
2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Planning

Report
(publication
expected 23
August 2021)

Cabinet will be
asked to agree
the name of the

Cabinet

Alison Talkington,
Senior Planning
Policy Officer

Non-Key

Page 38

Little Shelford
Village Design
Guide
Supplementary
Planning
Document (SPD)
Non-Key

Naming report on
new town at
Waterbeach

Alison Talkington,
Senior Planning
Policy Officer,
Hana Loftus,
Special Projects
Officer

30 July 2021

Lead Cabinet
Member for
Community

Report
(publication
expected 22 July

Non-Key

Local Government
(Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act
1982 - Street
Trading

new town at
Waterbeach after
being presented
with a summary
report by the
developers
following a period
of consultation.
To Adopt Act to
enable Street
Trading controls to
be applied Districtwide.

Resilience and
Health &
Wellbeing
Ryan Coetsee,
Project Officer

Cabinet

01 September
2021

Key

Page 39

Gambling Act
Policy
Non-Key

2021)

Lead Cabinet
member for
Environmental
Services and
Licensing

Report
(publication
expected 23
August 2021)

Rachel Jackson,
Principal
Licensing Officer

To agree to the
statutory tri-annual
policy revision
under the Gambling
Act 2005.

Council

23 September
2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Environmental
Services and
Licensing

Report
(publication
expected 15
September 2021)

Rachel Jackson,
Principal
Licensing Officer

Taxi Policy
Non-Key

Minor review of
Licensing Policy.

Council

23 September
2021

Lead Cabinet
member for
Environmental
Services and

Report
(publication
expected 15
September 2021)

Licensing
Jane Jackson,
Senior Resource
Officer

Local Government
(Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act
1982 - Street
Trading
Non-Key

Subject to above to
agree new Street
Trading Policy.

Cabinet

02 February 2022

Lead Cabinet
member for
Environmental
Services and
Licensing

Page 40

Rachel Jackson,
Principal
Licensing Officer

Report
(publication
expected 25
January 2022)

Updated: 25 June 2021

Scrutiny and Overview Committee Work Programme 2021-22
Meeting date

Potential Agenda item (subject to prioritisation by Chair and Vice Chair)

Every meeting

Selected Key Decision items prior to Cabinet
Selected Non-Key Decision items prior to Cabinet
Work programme
Feedback from task and finish groups

22 June 2021



Page 41


20 July 2021

14 Sept 2021



Private Sector Housing Policy (Environmental Health: Enforcement and
licensing) – Chair has confirmed (30 March 2021) the committee will
consider this item. Officers (Lesley Beever and Trevor Nicoll) have been
informed (30 March 2021)
Q4 Performance



To adopt the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 to
enable Street Trading controls to be applied District-wide. Adoption of
the Act District-wide, together with designating the whole of the District
(with the exception of the A11 and A14), would enable a new Street
Trading Policy to be implemented which would be fair, consistent and
equitable across the District. This would give the Licensing Authority
greater control over street trading and would ensure that all traders are
subject to the same application, enforcement, and conditions regardless
of where they trade in the District.
Recovery Plan




Updated Investment Strategy
Updated MTFS (non-Key)

Task and Finish/Working
Groups

Updated: 25 June 2021

Page 42

21 Sept 2021
(Extraordinary)



Greater Cambridge Joint Local Plan

October 2021



Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 – Consultation
responses

Nov 2021



Dec 2021



Jan 2022



Feb 2022w



March 2022



April 2022



May 2022



To adopt the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 to
enable Street Trading controls to be applied District-wide.

Scrutiny Work Programme Prioritisation Tool
NO

Does the issue have a potential
impact on one or more electoral
wards in South Cambs?
YES

NO

Is the issue strategic and
significant?
YES
Will scrutiny of the issue add
value to the Council’s overall
performance?

NO

YES
NO

Is it likely to lead to effective
outcomes?
YES
Will this scrutiny activity duplicate
any other work?

YES

NO
Is the issue of community
concern?

NO

YES
Are there adequate resources
available to support scrutiny
activity on the issue?

NO

YES
Is the scrutiny activity timely?

NO

YES

HIGH PRIORITY
Include in Work Programme

Low Priority
Consider including in
Work Programme

Page 43

Leave Out

This page is left blank intentionally.

